
United Nations A/C.5/57/SR.26

 

General Assembly
Fifty-seventh session

Official Records

Distr.: General
16 December 2002

Original: English

This record is subject to correction. Corrections should be sent under the signature of a member
of the delegation concerned within one week of the date of publication to the Chief of the
Official Records Editing Section, room DC2-750, 2 United Nations Plaza, and incorporated in a
copy of the record.

Corrections will be issued after the end of the session, in a separate corrigendum for each
Committee.

02-70241 (E)

*0270241*

Fifth Committee
Summary record of the 26th meeting
Held at Headquarters, New York, on Monday, 18 November 2002, at 2.30 p.m.

Chairman: Mr. Sharma . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (Nepal)
Chairman of the Advisory Committee on Administrative
and Budgetary Questions: Mr. Mselle

Contents
Agenda item 124: Financing of the International Tribunal for the Prosecution of
Persons Responsible for Serious Violations of International Humanitarian Law
Committed in the Territory of the Former Yugoslavia since 1991

Agenda item 125: Financing of the International Criminal Tribunal for the
Prosecution of Persons Responsible for Genocide and Other Serious Violations of
International Humanitarian Law Committed in the Territory of Rwanda and
Rwandan Citizens Responsible for Genocide and Other Such Violations Committed
in the Territory of Neighbouring States between 1 January and 31 December 1994

Agenda item 112: Programme budget for the biennium 2002-2003 (continued)

Proposed revisions to the Financial Regulations of the United Nations

Request for a subvention to the United Nations Institute for Disarmament
Research resulting from the recommendations of the Board of Trustees of the
Institute on the work programme of the Institute for 2003

United Nations Institute for Training and Research

Agenda item 111: Review of the efficiency of the administrative and financial
functioning of the United Nations (continued)

Agenda item 112: Programme budget for the biennium 2002-2003 (continued)



2

A/C.5/57/SR.26

Agenda item 115: Administrative and budgetary coordination of the United Nations
with the specialized agencies and the International Atomic Energy Agency
(continued)

Agenda item 12: Report of the Economic and Social Council

Organization of work



3

A/C.5/57/SR.26

The meeting was called to order at 2.35 p.m.

Agenda item 124: Financing of the International
Tribunal for the Prosecution of Persons Responsible
for Serious Violations of International Humanitarian
Law Committed in the Territory of the Former
Yugoslavia since 1991 (A/56/853; A/57/5/Add.12 and
Corr.1, A/57/367, A/57/439, A/57/480 and A/57/593)

Agenda item 125: Financing of the International
Criminal Tribunal for the Prosecution of Persons
Responsible for Genocide and Other Serious
Violations of International Humanitarian Law
Committed in the Territory of Rwanda and Rwandan
Citizens Responsible for Genocide and Other Such
Violations Committed in the Territory of
Neighbouring States between 1 January and 31
December 1994 (A/56/853; A/57/5/Add.11 and Corr.1
and 2, A/57/347, A/57/368, A/57/439, A/57/481 and
Corr.1, A/57/482, A/57/587 and A/57/593)

1. Mr. Sach (Director of the Programme Planning
and Budget Division) introduced the reports of the
Secretary-General on the financial performance report
of the International Tribunal for the Prosecution of
Persons Responsible for Serious Violations of
International Humanitarian Law Committed in the
Territory of the Former Yugoslavia since 1991 for the
period from 1 January to 31 December 2001
(A/57/367); on the first performance report of the
International Tribunal for the Former Yugoslavia for
the biennium 2002-2003 (A/57/480); on the financial
performance report of the International Criminal
Tribunal for the Prosecution of Persons Responsible for
Genocide and Other Serious Violations of International
Humanitarian Law Committed in the Territory of
Rwanda and Rwandan Citizens Responsible for
Genocide and Other Such Violations Committed in the
Territory of Neighbouring States between 1 January
and 31 December 1994 for the period from 1 January to
31 December 2001 (A/57/368); on the first
performance report of the International Tribunal for
Rwanda for the biennium 2002-2003 (A/57/481 and
Corr.1); on the revised estimates arising in respect of
Security Council resolution 1431 (2002) on the
establishment of ad litem judges in the International
Tribunal for Rwanda (A/57/482); on the conditions of
service for the ad litem judges of the International
Tribunal for Rwanda (A/57/587); and on the long-term

financial obligations of the United Nations with regard
to the enforcement of sentences (A/57/347).

2. In the financial performance report of the
International Tribunal for the Prosecution of Persons
Responsible for Serious Violations of International
Humanitarian Law Committed in the Territory of the
Former Yugoslavia since 1991 for the period from 1
January to 31 December 2001 (A/57/367), the General
Assembly was requested to note the utilization of the
commitment authority and also to note that the
associated financing for the unassessed expenditures in
the amount of $413,600 would be drawn from the
balance currently available in the Special Account.

3. The first performance report of the International
Tribunal for the Former Yugoslavia for the biennium
2002-2003 (A/57/480) reflected a requirement for net
additional appropriations of $13.1 million based upon
adverse experience in respect of exchange rates,
inflation and standard costs. Provision was also sought
for two additional trial teams at a cost of $0.6 million.
The Assembly was requested to revise the
appropriation for 2002-2003 and to approve the
additional financing by utilizing the unencumbered
balance available in the Special Account for the
International Tribunal for the Former Yugoslavia.

4. The Assembly was requested to take note of the
financial performance report of the International
Criminal Tribunal for the Prosecution of Persons
Responsible for Genocide and Other Serious Violations
of International Humanitarian Law Committed in the
Territory of Rwanda and Rwandan Citizens
Responsible for Genocide and Other Such Violations
Committed in the Territory of Neighbouring States
between 1 January and 31 December 1994 for the
period from 1 January to 31 December 2001
(A/57/368), and to note also that the funding of the
shortfall in respect of the overexpenditures incurred in
2001 would be addressed in the context of the first
performance report for the biennium 2002-2003.

5. The first performance report of the International
Tribunal for Rwanda for the biennium 2002-2003
(A/57/481 and Corr.1) reflected a requirement for net
additional appropriations of $2.2 million based upon
positive experience in respect of exchange rates and
standard costs, which were offset by adverse
experience in respect of inflation and other expenses
for defence counsel. The Assembly was requested to



4

A/C.5/57/SR.26

revise the appropriations for 2002-2003 and to approve
financing for 2003.

6. In the report of the Secretary-General on revised
estimates arising in respect of Security Council
resolution 1431 (2002) on the establishment of ad litem
judges in the International Tribunal for Rwanda
(A/57/482), the Assembly was requested to appropriate
an amount of $5,060,100 gross for the resources
required by the International Tribunal for Rwanda for
ad litem judges.

7. In his report on conditions of service for the ad
litem judges of the International Tribunal for Rwanda
(A/57/587), the Secretary-General was proposing to
establish the conditions of service applicable to the ad
litem judges based on the provisions of General
Assembly resolution 56/285, on the emoluments and
other conditions of service of the members of the
International Court of Justice and the judges of the
International Tribunals for the Former Yugoslavia and
for Rwanda.

8. The report of the Secretary-General on the long-
term financial obligations of the United Nations with
regard to the enforcement of sentences (A/57/347) was
submitted in response to the request of the General
Assembly in resolution 55/226. The General Assembly
was requested to take note of the report.

9. Mr. Mselle (Chairman of the Advisory
Committee on Administrative and Budgetary
Questions), introducing the related report of the
Advisory Committee on Administrative and Budgetary
Questions (ACABQ) (A/57/593), said that the
Advisory Committee welcomed the improvements that
had been made in the presentation of the reports for the
two Tribunals, which were in line with its
recommendations.

10. The additional expenditure that had been
requested for the International Criminal Tribunal for
Rwanda in the performance reports for 2001
(A/57/368) and for the biennium 2002-2003 (A/57/481
and Corr.1) was due largely to the continuing increase
in the cost of defence counsel, the extent of which was
summarized in paragraph 6 of the Advisory
Committee’s report. While the Advisory Committee
acknowledged that an increase in defence counsel costs
could not be avoided if there was an increase in the
number of arrests and trials, the financial performance
reports of the two Tribunals had not made that clear.
The Advisory Committee therefore welcomed the

establishment of a panel of consultants to provide
advice on improving the capacity of the Tribunals to
manage defence counsel costs more effectively and on
setting up an appropriate fee structure for defence
counsel.

11. The vacancy situation at the International
Tribunal for Rwanda continued to be of concern to
ACABQ, which had paid particular attention to the
circumstances that had kept the posts of Deputy
Prosecutor and Chief of Prosecution vacant for such a
long time. The Advisory Committee observed that the
failure to fill the vacant positions had nothing to do
with a lack of qualified candidates. Indeed, it had been
informed that there was an abundance of qualified
candidates both in the region and elsewhere. Since the
vacancies might have adversely affected the
performance of the Office of the Prosecutor in Kigali
and Arusha, the Advisory Committee recommended, in
paragraph 13 of its report, that the Office of Internal
Oversight Services (OIOS) should conduct a
management review of the Office of the Prosecutor.

12. The Advisory Committee’s comments on the
request for additional posts to support up to four ad
litem judges for the International Tribunal for Rwanda
were contained in paragraphs 15 to 17 of its report.
With regard to the vacancy situation in the Tribunal,
ACABQ recommended an additional 36 posts, with the
understanding that that number could be modified
should the Security Council increase the number of ad
litem judges. More posts could also be obtained after
the Tribunal’s investigations were completed in June
2003. The Advisory Committee further recommended
that the General Assembly should approve the
Secretary-General’s proposals regarding the conditions
of service of ad litem judges of the Tribunal.

13. With regard to the additional expenditure of $3.7
million projected for defence counsel costs for 2003,
for the reasons set out in paragraphs 19 to 21 of its
report, the Advisory Committee recommended that the
General Assembly should authorize the Secretary-
General to incur commitments up to the amount of $2.2
million, should it be deemed necessary, and report
thereon in the context of the next performance report of
the Tribunal.

14. The Advisory Committee’s comments and
recommendations on the financial performance reports
of the International Tribunal for the Former Yugoslavia
were contained in paragraphs 25 to 36 of its report. The



5

A/C.5/57/SR.26

Secretary-General had requested two additional trial
teams to bring the total up to 12 teams. In paragraph 36
of its report (A/56/665), the Advisory Committee had
recommended a total of 11 teams; it wished to reiterate
its earlier recommendation that one additional trial
team should be approved for the Prosecution Division
of the Tribunal.

15. In paragraphs 37 to 45, the Advisory Committee
commented on the report of the Secretary-General on
the long-term financial obligations of the United
Nations with regard to the enforcement of sentences
(A/57/347) and on the results of the implementation of
the recommendations of the Expert Group that had
been appointed to review the operation and functioning
of the International Tribunal for Rwanda. The
Committee’s recommendations were contained in
paragraphs 41 and 45. With regard to the enforcement
of sentences, the Committee drew attention to the need
to clarify the subject of the cost of upgrading prison
facilities, for which funds authorized by the General
Assembly had so far not been used.

16. Mr. Hammerschmidt (Canada), speaking also on
behalf of Australia and New Zealand, said that the
considerable progress that had been made by the
Tribunals in fulfilling their core mission of bringing to
account the political and military leaders responsible
for genocide, crimes against humanity and war crimes
was due in large part to progress on a number of
operational and administrative fronts. The International
Tribunal for the Former Yugoslavia had now
maximized its operating capacity, implemented timely
and essential reforms to cope with the increased pace
of work, and helped to reinforce the ethical conduct of
its legal counsel. Most notably, it had continued to
develop its completion strategy and to integrate it into
its operations. While progress had been slower on a
completion strategy for the International Tribunal for
Rwanda, recent improvements had created the
conditions for finalizing such a strategy. Those
successes were encouraging and the Tribunals should
continue to build on them.

17. Nevertheless, a number of obstacles to the
effective and timely fulfilment of the Tribunals’
mandates still remained. First, the level of outstanding
contributions to the Tribunals was unacceptable. While
a small cushion of funds for operating costs in 2003
was expected, the arrears situation continued to
threaten the Tribunals’ stability. Member States that

had not yet remitted their assessed contributions were
therefore urged to do so without delay.

18. The vacancy situation in the International
Tribunal for Rwanda, particularly the vacancies in the
posts of Chief of Prosecution and Deputy Prosecutor,
could not be sustained much longer; the absence of key
personnel undermined the Tribunal’s efforts to
undertake its work. Moreover, even though the Fifth
Committee had identified oversight at the Tribunals as
a priority and had established auditor and investigator
posts for each Tribunal, nine months later none of
those critical posts had been filled. The delegations on
whose behalf he spoke would like to see early progress
on the matter.

19. As the Board of Auditors had noted, the
frameworks used by the Tribunals for establishing
indigence were severely flawed. Given the sums
involved, it was not surprising that defence counsel
costs should have run well over the budget during the
past three years. The financial implications of the
problem were of great concern and the
recommendations of the Board of Auditors should be
implemented without delay.

20. The report of the Secretary-General on the long-
term financial obligations of the United Nations with
regard to the enforcement of sentences clearly showed
that the short- and long-term financial implications of
the Tribunals’ work needed to be examined in greater
detail. In that connection, it would be useful to know
how the cost estimates for maintaining prisoners were
determined. Given the uncertainty about the use of
resources for the upgrading of prison facilities,
Member States might wish to give policy guidance on
the issue. The international community, including the
Security Council, should also examine more closely the
anticipated long-term requirements after the Tribunals
had completed their mandates.

21. Another important concern was the need for the
Tribunals’ completion strategies to be finalized and
fully integrated into the management of the two bodies.
Coordinated direction and a focus on results were
fundamental to their success and results-based
budgeting should therefore be mainstreamed into the
next budget proposals for the Tribunals, which should
outline near-term objectives and completion targets.
The proposals should also reflect an administratively
proactive approach and outline initiatives for
addressing anticipated and potential pitfalls.



6

A/C.5/57/SR.26

Ultimately, the budget should be a yardstick against
which delegations could measure the progress of the
Tribunals and assess value for money.

22. In refining its completion strategy, the
International Tribunal for Rwanda should apply the
lessons learned in the International Tribunal for the
Former Yugoslavia, particularly with regard to the
establishment of a management council for directing
that task. Both Tribunals should also clarify their plans
for the referral of cases to national courts in the context
of their completion strategies.

23. The fiscal circumstances at both Tribunals, the
tentative nature of projected costs, and the inability to
control the legal aid system adequately convinced the
delegations on whose behalf he spoke that the Advisory
Committee’s recommendations were a prudent course
of action at the current time.

24. Mr. Xudong Sun (China) said that it was
essential for the International Tribunal for Rwanda to
strengthen its control over expenditures. His delegation
noted with particular concern the increase of
$6,555,500 for contractual services in 2001 and the
marked increase in the appropriation for defence
counsel costs for the biennium 2002-2003. While some
of the overexpenditures could be explained by the
inability to make accurate forecasts at the time the
budget was prepared, others were the result of
mismanagement. An effective monitoring and control
mechanism should therefore be established to
strengthen the expenditure structure of the Tribunals
and rein in the upward spiral in defence counsel costs.

25. The current vacancy rate in the International
Tribunal for Rwanda was another cause of concern. By
the end of 2002, the post of Chief of Prosecution would
have been vacant for two years. It was impossible to
believe that no suitable candidate could be found to fill
the post and his delegation would like to know the real
reason behind that extremely abnormal situation. His
delegation supported the Advisory Committee’s
recommendation that the General Assembly should
approve 36 of the 46 posts that had been proposed,
with additional requirements being met through
redeployment.

26. Mr. Christiansen (Denmark), speaking on behalf
of the European Union, the associated countries
Bulgaria, Cyprus the Czech Republic, Hungary, Latvia,
Lithuania, Malta, Poland, Romania, Slovakia, Slovenia
and Turkey, and, in addition, Iceland and Liechtenstein,

welcomed the reports on the International Tribunals for
the Former Yugoslavia and for Rwanda and the report
of the Advisory Committee, but expressed
disappointment that they had been issued late,
particularly the ACABQ report.

27. The European Union strongly supported the
Tribunals and valued the work of their staff, but it was
concerned at the continuing high vacancy rate at the
International Tribunal for Rwanda. It would be seeking
updated information from the Secretariat on that
matter, in view of the fact that there appeared to be an
abundance of qualified candidates in the region and
elsewhere applying for the many unfilled positions,
including the important posts of Deputy Prosecutor and
Chief of Prosecution. In its comments on the reports of
the United Nations Board of Auditors, the European
Union had referred to the alarming inadequacies in
many areas of the management and regulatory systems
of both Tribunals. It shared the concern of ACABQ
regarding the management of the expenses of the legal
aid system at the International Tribunal for Rwanda,
the overspend of more than $6 million for 2001 and the
projected current requirements of $3.7 million.

28. The European Union was pleased to note, in
connection with the Tribunals’ completion strategies,
that the International Tribunal for Rwanda was due to
complete investigations in 2003, and that the
International Tribunal for the Former Yugoslavia would
complete investigations by 2004 and trials by 2008.
The United Nations Board of Auditors had
recommended, in its report on the International
Tribunal for the Former Yugoslavia (A/57/5/Add.12),
that the Tribunal should take a number of steps to
control its increasing costs. In response, the Tribunal
had established 120 performance indicators for its
judicial process. The logical next step was for the
Tribunal to prepare its 2004-2005 budget using the
principles of results-based budgeting. The European
Union wished to learn how the International Tribunal
for Rwanda planned to implement the
recommendations of the Board of Auditors. Regarding
the decision to use ad litem judges, the European
Union would be seeking assurances that full and
effective use was being made of that additional
resource. A further cause of concern was the delay in
appointing audit and investigation staff, a measure
approved by the General Assembly in 2001. That
should be made a priority.



7

A/C.5/57/SR.26

29. A successful completion strategy for the
Tribunals was also dependent on the resolution of
issues connected with the enforcement of sentences.
Those issues should be addressed by the General
Assembly and the Security Council.

30. Mr. Kang Jeong-sik (Republic of Korea) said
that the establishment of the International Tribunals for
the Former Yugoslavia and for Rwanda had been
unprecedented, so that a number of issues that had not
initially been foreseen or fully understood had arisen.
However, the Tribunals’ work was vital, and efforts
should be made to ensure that they operated efficiently
and effectively to fulfil their stated goals.

31. The annual costs of the two Tribunals had almost
tripled over the past two bienniums. The final level of
those costs was unknown, and would depend on the
duration of their existence. His delegation was
concerned that the Tribunals still lacked firm, realistic
and achievable strategies for the completion of their
missions. Completion strategies were essential, as,
without such strategies, the significance of setting
annual objectives, performance indicators and realistic
targets would be lost. His delegation agreed with the
recommendation made by the United Nations Board of
Auditors in its report on the International Tribunal for
the Former Yugoslavia (A/57/5/Add.12) that binding
budget ceilings, final deadlines and indicators should
be used as a way of reducing the Tribunal’s final cost.

32. The completion strategies of the Tribunals should
strike a proper balance between judicial ambition and
budget constraints. Without interfering in the course of
justice, a target number of proceedings and trials
should be set, and a timetable for prosecution, initial
judgements and appeals should be determined. The
completion strategies should be reviewed regularly
against clear performance indicators.

33. With regard to overexpenditure at the
International Tribunal for Rwanda, his delegation
shared the concern of the Advisory Committee about
the escalating costs of defence counsel. The Tribunal
would need to expand its ability to manage, monitor
and control those costs. Clear and quantitative criteria
should be established to determine which individuals
should qualify for legal aid.

34. It was a matter of concern that the posts of
Deputy Prosecutor and Chief of Prosecution at the
International Tribunal for Rwanda had remained vacant
for almost two years; that affected the capacity of the

Office of the Prosecutor in Arusha and in Kigali. His
delegation agreed with the Advisory Committee’s
recommendation that the Office of Internal Oversight
Services should conduct a management review of the
Office of the Prosecutor.

35. Mr. Sach (Director of the Programme Planning
and Budget Division) said that the concerns of the
members of the Committee appeared to focus on filling
staff vacancies, defence counsel costs, the long-term
financial obligations attached to the enforcement of
sentences, the payment of assessments and the use of
results-based budgeting in the future.

36. With regard to the chronic problem of vacancies,
the overall situation at the International Tribunal for
Rwanda had improved slightly and posts had been
filled in 2002 faster than had been forecast when the
budget for 2002-2003 was being established. Concerns
over the delay in filling the post of Deputy Prosecutor
in Kigali were being taken seriously. Interviews had
been scheduled in Arusha for mid-December, and the
Prosecutor had indicated that she would be making her
recommendation for an appointment to the Secretary-
General by the end of 2002 with a view to filling the
post early in 2003. The post of Chief of Prosecution
had been re-advertised, having been advertised twice
already, as no suitable candidates had been found. The
Office of Internal Oversight Services had reported that
resident auditor and investigator posts for the two
Tribunals had been advertised so that appointments
could be made early in 2003.

37. As for defence counsel costs at the International
Tribunal for Rwanda, expenditure was recognized as a
problem, and the Registrar had established a review
panel to examine the legal aid system. Consultants
would be recruited to follow up the findings of the
review panel, but the issue was a complex one and
would take time to solve. Action had also been taken to
ensure a closer review and speedier processing of
expenditure claims so that obligations were recognized
in the accounts as soon as they arose.

38. With regard to the enforcement of sentences,
there had been questions from the Committee about the
composition and basis of prisoners’ maintenance costs,
which the ACABQ report on the financing of the
International Tribunal for Rwanda (A/56/666) gave as
$20 per day. That figure reflected agreements signed by
the Registrar with Mali, Benin and Swaziland, and took
account of the cost of bedding, toiletries, clothing,



8

A/C.5/57/SR.26

telephone charges, meal supplements, incidentals,
medical care and maintenance.

39. At least one delegation had pointed out the
problem of the late payment of assessments. The result
of that situation had been enforced cross-borrowing at
times from the peacekeeping budget. The Registrars of
both Tribunals had been warned that they might not be
given full expenditure authority in 2003 unless
payment patterns improved. The Organization’s overall
financial situation did not permit provision to be made
for further cross-borrowing the following year.

40. As for the use of results-based indicators in the
budget proposals for the biennium 2004-2005,
implementation in the Registry and the Office of the
Prosecutor was certainly possible. The situation was
likely to be more difficult in the case of the Chambers,
since the Tribunals were subsidiary organs not of the
General Assembly, but of the Security Council.
Establishing specific objectives for the judicial aspects
of the operation was therefore a complex matter.

Agenda item 112: Programme budget for the
biennium 2002-2003 (continued)

Proposed revisions to the Financial Regulations of
the United Nations (A/57/396)

41. Mr. Halbwachs (Assistant Secretary-General,
Controller), introducing the report of the Secretary-
General on the proposed revisions to the Financial
Regulations of the United Nations (A/57/396), said that
section II of the report presented in tabular form the
proposed revisions, the existing Financial Regulations
and explanations of the proposed revisions. The
proposed revisions had been reviewed by ACABQ and
the United Nations Board of Auditors, and their
concerns had been taken into account. The report also
contained details and explanations of changes to the
Financial Rules which the Secretary-General intended
to make on his own authority. They were therefore
being presented for information.

42. Through the Financial Regulations, the General
Assembly provided broad policy directives for the
financial management of the Organization. Through the
Financial Rules, the Secretary-General stated how the
Financial Regulations would be implemented and laid
down the parameters within which the Organization’s
staff would exercise their responsibilities. The
Regulations and Rules taken together constituted a

single source document for the financial management
policies of the United Nations. The Financial
Regulations had been issued in 1960 and revised and
re-issued in 1985; their sequence and structure was
haphazard because of previous partial revision. The
goal of the current revision was to simplify and
reorganize the Regulations and Rules under subject-
relevant articles, and to order them according to the
sequence of financial management actions. For the first
time, the revision also covered the General Assembly
resolutions regarding peacekeeping operations and the
procurement rules established by the Inter-Agency
Task Force on Common Services. The Financial
Regulations had increased in number, mainly because
of the inclusion of new Regulations to cover
peacekeeping operations, one of the fundamental
principles of General Assembly resolution 49/233 on
the administrative and budgetary aspects of the
financing of peacekeeping operations.

43. The revisions provided the foundation of a
systematic overview of the delegation of authority
within financial management, and reflected the flow of
authorization from the Secretary-General, as chief
administrative officer, to the Under-Secretary-General
for Management, to the officers of the Department of
Management. The decision-making path conformed to
the clear, hierarchical structure needed to reinforce
accountability and good management. The adoption of
concise and logically consistent Financial Regulations
was a further step in developing simpler and more
straightforward administrative procedures.

44. Mr. Mselle (Chairman of the Advisory
Committee on Administrative and Budgetary
Questions) said that the Advisory Committee had
reviewed the proposed Financial Regulations and had
had an exchange of views thereon with the Controller.
The Advisory Committee’s concerns had been taken
into account in the proposed revisions to the Financial
Regulations and were reflected in the report before the
Committee. It had not therefore been necessary to issue
a separate report of ACABQ. The new Financial Rules,
which had been presented to the Advisory Committee
(A/57/396, para. 6), would be promulgated by the
Secretary-General following the adoption by the
General Assembly of the revised Financial
Regulations.

45. The Chairman suggested that the Secretariat
should prepare a draft decision for consideration by the



9

A/C.5/57/SR.26

Committee in which it would recommend that the
General Assembly should:

“1. Take note of the report of the Secretary-
General on the proposed revisions to the
Financial Regulations of the United Nations
(A/57/396) and the observations of the Advisory
Committee on Administrative and Budgetary
Questions thereon;

“2. Adopt the revised Financial Regulations as
set forth in the report of the Secretary-General;
and

“3. Decide that these Regulations shall become
effective on 1 January 2003.”

46. Ms. Silot Bravo (Cuba) said that she had no
objection to that suggestion, which would help to
expedite the Committee’s work. However, she trusted
that there would be an opportunity for delegations to
comment on the report of the Secretary-General before
the Committee took action on the draft decision.

47. The Chairman said that there would be a further
opportunity for discussion once the text of the draft
decision was available in all the official languages. He
took it that the Committee wished to proceed along the
lines he had suggested.

48. It was so decided.

Request for a subvention to the United Nations
Institute for Disarmament Research resulting from
the recommendations of the Board of Trustees of the
Institute on the work programme of the Institute for
2003 (A/57/7/Add.7; A/C.5/57/4)

49. Mr. Sach (Director of the Programme Planning
and Budget Division), introducing the note by the
Secretary-General on the request for a subvention to
the United Nations Institute for Disarmament Research
(UNIDIR) resulting from the recommendations of the
Board of Trustees of the Institute on the work
programme of the Institute for 2003 (A/C.5/57/4), said
that an amount of $227,600 was sought. Provision had
been made in the programme budget for the biennium
2002-2003, under section 4 (Disarmament), for the
subvention to the Institute. Thus, should the General
Assembly approve the recommendation of the Board of
Trustees, no additional appropriation would be
required.

50. Mr. Mselle (Chairman of the Advisory
Committee on Administrative and Budgetary
Questions), introducing the related report of ACABQ
(A/57/7/Add.7), said that the Advisory Committee
recommended that the General Assembly should
approve the request for a subvention to the Institute for
2003 in the amount of $227,600.

United Nations Institute for Training and Research
(A/57/7/Add.15; A/57/479)

51. Mr. Sach (Director of the Programme Planning
and Budget Division), introducing the report of the
Secretary-General on the United Nations Institute for
Training and Research (UNITAR) (A/57/479), said that
the report had been prepared pursuant to General
Assembly resolution 56/208, in which the Secretary-
General had been requested to clarify why UNITAR
did not benefit from rental rates and maintenance costs
similar to those enjoyed by other organizations
affiliated with the United Nations. In accordance with
the provisions of General Assembly resolution 41/213,
users occupying office space on United Nations
premises were charged rents based on current
commercial rates. The specific administrative and
financial arrangements for rental and maintenance
costs for UNITAR were set out in paragraphs 13 to 15
of the report. Should the General Assembly approve
free rent and maintenance for UNITAR, an additional
biennial appropriation of $293,000 would be required
under the regular budget in the current biennium; that
amount would represent a charge against the
contingency fund and would be considered in the
context of the consolidated statement to be presented
by the Secretary-General in December 2002, in
accordance with the provisions of General Assembly
resolution 42/211. It would also be necessary to amend
articles VIII and XI of the statute of the Institute.

52. Details on the status of contributions to, and the
financial situation of, UNITAR were provided in the
annex to the report. He noted, in that connection, that,
while UNITAR currently owed the United Nations
$310,974 for unpaid rent and maintenance costs, the
financial situation of the Institute could hardly be
described as precarious. Indeed, the account had shown
a positive balance for a number of years.

53. Mr. Mselle (Chairman of the Advisory
Committee on Administrative and Budgetary
Questions), introducing the related report of ACABQ



10

A/C.5/57/SR.26

(A/57/7/Add.15), drew attention to paragraph 11 of that
document.

54. Mr. Pulido León (Venezuela), speaking on behalf
of the Group of 77 and China, said that a draft
resolution on UNITAR had been introduced in the
Second Committee, which had considered the
Secretary-General’s report on the Institute under
agenda item 92, Training and research. In the light of
the ongoing discussions in the Second Committee, he
was not in a position to make a statement on the report.
However, he wished to be given an opportunity to do
so before the report was taken up in informal
consultations.

55. The Chairman said that that request would be
taken into account in the programme of work.

56. Mr. Chaudhry (Pakistan) said that the activities
of UNITAR were of great value to the United Nations
and to Member States, especially developing countries.
Many delegates had benefited from the Institute’s
focused interactive courses, which enabled them to
participate more effectively in the intergovernmental
process and which were provided free of charge.
UNITAR had served the United Nations well. It was
therefore regrettable that the Organization was not
ready to contribute to the strengthening of the financial
situation of the Institute by providing it with office
space on a rent-free and maintenance-free basis. In
resolution 56/208, the General Assembly had requested
the Secretary-General to clarify the reasons for the
discriminatory treatment afforded UNITAR. However,
the report before the Committee merely set out the
programme budget implications of waiving the rental
rates and maintenance costs charged to the Institute.
While the Advisory Committee stated, in paragraph 5
of its report (A/57/7/Add.15), that UNITAR had been
able to continue its existing activities with no deficit,
the Institute had, in fact, accumulated debts of
$310,974. The time had come to recognize the laudable
services rendered by UNITAR and to provide it with
the resources it needed to continue its good work.

57. Ms. Silot Bravo (Cuba) said that her delegation
wished to associate itself with the statement made by
the representative of Pakistan. UNITAR should be
provided with office space on a rent-free and
maintenance-free basis, particularly since other
organizations affiliated with the United Nations were
already benefiting from similar arrangements.

58. Ms. Udo (Nigeria) said that her delegation fully
endorsed the statement made by the representative of
Pakistan.

59. The Chairman suggested that, in order to
expedite the work of the Committee, other delegations
should make their statements when the Committee
reverted to the issue.

60. It was so decided.

Agenda item 111: Review of the efficiency of the
administrative and financial functioning of the
United Nations (continued)

Agenda item 112: Programme budget for the
biennium 2002-2003 (continued)

Agenda item 115: Administrative and budgetary
coordination of the United Nations with the
specialized agencies and the International Atomic
Energy Agency (continued)

Activities of the Advisory Committee on Administrative
and Budgetary Questions (A/57/7)

61. Mr. Mselle (Chairman of the Advisory
Committee on Administrative and Budgetary
Questions) introduced the first report of the Advisory
Committee on Administrative and Budgetary Questions
on the activities of the Advisory Committee during the
fifty-sixth session of the General Assembly (A/57/7).
The report contained details of the Advisory
Committee’s activities during the fifty-sixth session of
the General Assembly in New York and at other duty
stations. The reports prepared by the Committee during
the reporting period were set out in Annex II. It could
be seen that ACABQ reported not only to the General
Assembly but also to other intergovernmental bodies,
such as the legislative bodies of funds and
programmes.

62. In the past, there had sometimes been requests
from members of the Fifth Committee that the
Advisory Committee should take into account the
programme of work of the Fifth Committee when
considering meetings away from New York. The
Advisory Committee had always complied with those
requests. Missions of the Advisory Committee to
overseas duty stations provided valuable experience
and information which the Advisory Committee used
when preparing its reports to the Fifth Committee and



11

A/C.5/57/SR.26

to other bodies. They also gave representatives of the
host duty stations the opportunity to become familiar
with aspects of United Nations budgetary and review
processes that could not be learned so easily from
Secretariat departments.

63. The Chairman said that, if he heard no
objection, he would take it that the Committee wished
him to recommend to the General Assembly that it
should take note with appreciation of the first report of
the Advisory Committee on Administrative and
Budgetary Questions on the activities of the Advisory
Committee during the fifty-sixth session of the General
Assembly and request the Secretary-General to bring
the report to the attention of the executive heads of the
specialized agencies and the funds and programmes
concerned.

64. It was so decided.

Agenda item 12: Report of the Economic and Social
Council (A/57/3, chapters I, VII (sections B and C) and
IX)

65. The Chairman drew attention to chapters I, VII
(sections B and C) and IX of the report of the
Economic and Social Council for 2002 (A/57/3), which
had been allocated to the Fifth Committee.

66. If he heard no objection, he would take it that the
Committee wished to recommend to the General
Assembly that it should take note of the chapters of the
report of the Economic and Social Council which had
been allocated to the Fifth Committee.

67. It was so decided.

Organization of work

68. Mr. Pulido León (Venezuela) asked for
clarification as to why the report on the administration
of justice, which the Secretary-General had been asked
to submit in General Assembly resolution 55/258 on
human resources management, was still not available
for consideration. It was now two years since the report
had been requested and, whenever the matter was
raised, different explanations were given for the failure
to submit it.

69. Mr. Acakpo-Satchivi (Secretary of the
Committee) said it was true that a report on the
administration of justice at the United Nations had
been requested, but pointed out that the General
Assembly had decided to make the question a separate

agenda item (agenda item 123). Consideration of that
item should not be confused with matters relating to
human resources. The item was not on the agenda at
present because not all of the relevant reports had been
published. In addition, although the report of the Joint
Inspection Unit on reform of the administration of
justice in the United Nations system (A/57/441) had
been submitted, a period of six months had to be
allowed to enable the United Nations System Chief
Executives Board for Coordination (CEB) to submit its
remarks on the report, before it could be properly
considered. It was also necessary to wait for the
General Assembly to complete its deliberations on the
report of the Secretary-General on the strengthening of
the United Nations: an agenda for further change
(A/57/387). Consideration of the item had therefore
been deferred for the moment.

70. Mr. Mselle (Chairman of the Advisory
Committee on Administrative and Budgetary
Questions) said that the Advisory Committee had
reviewed the Secretary-General’s report (A/57/387)
and that a number of fundamental questions had
emerged from that review. The Advisory Committee
was also awaiting replies from the specialized agencies
concerning the report of the Joint Inspection Unit. The
administration of justice was a very important issue
and its examination by the Fifth Committee should not
be rushed. In view of the additional information the
Advisory Committee had requested, it was unlikely that
it would complete its own report in time for the Fifth
Committee to discuss the matter before the end of the
year.

The meeting rose at 4.35 p.m.


